
Tuesday, 17 September 2019 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

On Thursday, 26 September 2019, on the rising of the meeting of the Management Team, the 
following report(s) will be considered under powers delegated to Portfolio Holders, the Chief 
Executive and Directors for the discharge of the Council’s Cabinet functions carried out within their 
area of responsibility. 
 
Copies of these reports have been sent to the relevant Portfolio Holders (and all Members of the 
Cabinet for information), the Chief Executive, all Directors and the Monitoring Officer. 
 
Cabinet Members, or any of the other consultees, may object to the report within five working days 
- by 5.00 p.m. on, Wednesday, 25 September 2019 - by notifying the Officer named on the report 
of the objection and requesting that the matter be referred to the next meeting of the Cabinet for 
determination. 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  LOCAL PLAN REVIEW - EVIDENCE BASE STUDIES AND PROFESSIONAL 
ADVICE  

3 - 8 

 To consider procurement of additional evidence base studies to inform the 
preparation of the review of the South Lakeland Local Plan. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



South Lakeland District Council 

Delegated Executive Decisions 

Date of Proposed Decision: Thursday, 26 September 2019 

Local Plan Review - Evidence Base Studies 

 

Portfolio:   Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Decision Maker: Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

Report Author: Alastair McNeill – Development Plans Manager 

Wards:  Arnside & Milnthorpe; Bowness & Levens; Broughton & Coniston; 
Burton & Crooklands; Cartmel; Furness Peninsula; Grange; Kendal 
East; Kendal North; Kendal Rural; Kendal South & Natland; Kendal 
Town; Kendal West; Sedbergh & Kirkby Lonsdale; Ulverston East; 
Ulverston West; 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report seeks approval to procure additional evidence base studies to inform the 
preparation of the review of the South Lakeland Local Plan. A robust evidence base 
is an important element in plan making, as the soundness of the reviewed Local Plan 
will be the subject of independent examination by an Inspector, whose assessment 
will include considering if the submitted Plan is justified and based on proportionate 
and well-founded evidence.      

2.0 Proposed Decision 

2.1 It is recommended that Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources 

 (1) approves the addition to the 2019/20 procurement schedule of the studies 
set out in paragraph 3.4 of this report, as required to contribute to a robust 
evidence base for the Local Plan Review.  

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 SLDC is the planning authority for South Lakeland outside the National Parks and 
responsible for preparing the South Lakeland Local Plan. The adopted Local Plan 
documents currently comprise the Core Strategy (Oct. 2010), Land Allocations plan 
(Dec. 2013), and Development Management Policies and Arnside and Silverdale 
AONB plans (March 2019). The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states 
that Local Plan policies should be reviewed at least every five years from the date of 
their adoption and a review of the Local Plan documents is underway to combine 
these documents (except the AONB DPD) into a single Local Plan and extend the 
period covered by it from 2025 to 2040.    

3.2 The Local Plan review will update local planning policies (where necessary) to take 
account of the latest National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF, February 2019) 
and National Planning Practice Guidance. It will also review and supplement the 
allocation of land for housing and employment to meet latest evidence of need. The 
review also provides opportunity to ensure local planning policy reflects the needs of 

Page 3

Item No.1



communities and priorities and objectives in the Council Plan where these can be 
advanced through the planning of new development on matters including:   

 design quality and environmental standards; 

 biodiversity and climate change; 

 new and affordable homes;  

 more and better-paid jobs; and 

 opportunities for improving health and well-being, for example, by providing open 
space and play areas, and new walking and cycle-routes.   

3.3 Robust and up-to-date evidence is essential to ensuring that the Local Plan is 
justified and found sound at independent examination. Studies are undertaken where 
possible by the Council’s planning policy officers, but in some areas it is necessary to 
obtain external professional expertise. Studies which have been commissioned 
already include:      

 a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, which is underway, commissioned jointly with 
the Lake District National Park Authority, and Allerdale and Copeland Borough 
Councils; 

 the Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) which provides updated 
evidence of objectively assessed housing, and affordable housing need; and  

 a viability study, prepared for the Development Management Policies DPD, which 
assessed the viability of development when account is taken of the range of 
policy requirements in Local Plan documents.        

3.4 This report requests approval for the addition to the procurement schedule of the 
further evidence studies and professional advice set out below, to be undertaken (or 
commence within) year 2019/20. These can be undertaken within existing budgets 
and are each estimated to fall below £60,000.  

 An Employment Land and Premises Review: this study will provide information 
on the estimated need for employment land and premises over the plan period 
and also assess whether the currently allocated employment sites comprise the 
right amount, type and locations to meet that need.      

 Green Infrastructure, Open Space and Sport/Recreation study and strategy: this 
will assess current green infrastructure provision, and its various roles (eg for 
biodiversity, recreation, access and Green Gap review) to inform the needs and 
opportunities to improve green infrastructure through new planned development 
to 2040.  

3.5 Other studies and evidence being prepared in-house this year include a Strategic 
Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA) and a ‘Call For Sites’, Sustainability 
Appraisal scoping work and the annual update of the Brownfield land Register.  

 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 The studies and professional advice recommended for procurement will form part of 
the evidence base on which the views of communities and stakeholders will be 
sought when consulting at each stage in the Local Plan Review.  

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The additional evidence and professional advice required, as set out in paragraph 3.4 
is considered essential to informing and justifying recommendations within the Local 
Plan Review. The additional professional advice sought cannot be obtained within 

Page 4



the Council but options will be explored as to whether this may be procured jointly 
with neighbouring authorities. Studies are undertaken in-house where possible. This 
option has been considered for the Employment Land and Green Infrastructure 
studies, but it is considered that both require professional expertise not available 
within the Council.       

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 The Local Plan Review, supported by robust evidence and professional advice, has a 
fundamentally-important role in delivering the priorities set out in the Council Plan 
(2019-2024) including in relation to the overarching themes of Health and 
Environment, Economy and Culture and Housing and Communities. Specific 
elements of the Local Plan Review relevant to delivering on Council Plan priorities 
include: 

 Working Across boundaries 

o preparing a new Local Plan 

 Creating balanced communities  

o delivering affordable homes  

 Reducing Inequalities 

o Improving air quality and reducing pollution  

 Sustainable environment and inclusive economy  

o Ensuring new development is sustainable, energy efficient and flood 
resilient 

o Developing town centres which are attractive, and accessible for living, 
working, culture and leisure 

o Encouraging walking and cycling    

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 The recommended evidence base studies and professional advice can be 
undertaken within existing budgets. The report recommends that the procurement of 
the studies and professional advice set out, be added to the procurement schedule. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no additional staffing needs arising from the procurement and delivery of 
the studies and professional advice set out in this report.  

Legal 

7.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?  No   

7.5 This report requests approval to procure part of a larger evidence base to support 
and inform the Local Plan review. This wider process of Plan preparation and 
consultation will include a regulatory requirement for the Sustainability Appraisal of 
the economic, social and environmental impacts of options and proposals at each 
stage of public consultation in the plan making process.    

Page 5



Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 

7.8 As noted above, this report requests approval to procure part of a larger evidence 
base to support and inform the Local Plan review. This wider process of Plan 
preparation and consultation will include a detailed assessment of the equality and 
diversity impact of the options and proposals at each stage of public consultation in 
the plan making process.  

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Not procuring the studies and 
professional advice, 
recommended in this report  

A high risk that the Local 
Plan Review may not be 
found sound at 
examination – with 
particular reference to the 
robust assessment 
needed of sites proposed 
for allocation for 
development.   

Ensuring the 
recommended studies are 
undertaken and 
professional advice 
obtained  

Changes or reductions in staff or 
financial resource.   

Potential to prevent or 
delay the procurement of 
the studies and 
professional advice, 
recommended in this 
report 

Maintenance of sufficient 
resources.  

Contact Officers 

Alastair McNeill, Senior Specialist (Strategy), 01539 793379, a.mcneill@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Core Strategy (October 2010)  https://tinyurl.com/yd4tjhgd 

Land Allocations DPD (Dec 2013) https://tinyurl.com/y8hn42bx 

Development Management Policies 
DPD (March 2019)  

https://tinyurl.com/hfotl58 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 4.9.19 

Section 151 Officer 4.9.19 

Monitoring Officer 4.9.19  

CMT 11.9.19  

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 4.9.19 

Human Resources Lead Specialist 4.9.19 

Director 4.9.19  

Communications Team N/A 

Page 6

mailto:a.mcneill@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://tinyurl.com/yd4tjhgd
https://tinyurl.com/y8hn42bx
https://tinyurl.com/hfotl58


Circulated to Date sent 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 6.9.19  

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Note – Report authors must consult the relevant Portfolio Holder, members of the 
Corporate Management Team, the Monitoring Officer, and any other interested parties 
before a decision can be taken. If any objections are received, they must be reported 
at the meeting before the decision is taken. 

Signed by:- Title:- 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8


	Agenda
	1 Local Plan Review - Evidence Base Studies and Professional Advice

